SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 30, 2013
1:06 p.m

1: 06: 08 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair (via tel econference)
Senator M ke Dunl eavy (via tel econference)

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Cick Bishop

ALSO PRESENT

Susan Schrader, Self, Juneau; George W Brown, Physician,
Dougl as; Cynthia Sinpson- Sugar, Sel f, Juneau; Joyanne
Bl oom Self, Juneau; Rachel Gearhart, Self, Juneau; John
Sonin, Self, Juneau; Ann Fiorella, Self, Juneau; Alyson
Currey, Juneau, Self.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jim Mnnery, Alaska Famly Action, Anchorage; Jennifer
Allen, Director of Public Policy, Planned Parenthood G eat
Nort hwest, Seattle; Laura Einstein, Chief Legal Oficer,
Pl anned Parenthood G eat Northwest, Seattle; Paul Johnsen,
Self, Petersburg; Kate Finn, Nurse, Honmer; Lynn Ammu, Self,
Pal mer; Any Bollenbach, Self, Homer; Di ana Conway, Self,
Hal i but Cove; Jean Janes, Self, Fairbanks; Mary Kehrhahn-
St ar k, Sel f, Fai r banks; Robi n  Ford, Sel f, Anchorage;
Ei |l uned Hogenson, Physi ci an, Fai r banks; Karen Lew s,
Executive Director, Center for Bio Ethical Reform Pal ner;
Dee Longenbaugh, Sel f, Juneau; Cathy Grard, Sel f,
Anchorage; Sheila Howe, Self, Anchorage; Cover Sinon,



Sel f, Anchorage; Elann Mren, Self, Palnmer; Robin Smth,
Sel f, Anchor age.

SUMVARY

SB 49 MEDI CAI D PAYMENT FOR ABORTI ONS; TERMS
SB 49 was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb49

SENATE BILL NO. 49

"An Act defining 'nedically necessary abortion' for
pur poses of making paynments under the state Medicaid
program "

1: 08: 32 PM

JIM M NNERY, ALASKA FAM LY  ACTI ON, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of SB 49. He felt
that SB 49 did not restrict a person's access to abortion.
He pointed out that SB 49 would not restrict a wonan's
right to an elective an abortion. He stated that SB 49 was
intended to restrict an abortion that is paid for Medicaid
to be considered "nedically necessary.”" He referred to
testimony by the Chief Legal Counsel from Planned
Parent hood. He shared that she could not define an
"elective abortion.” He quoted Laura Einstein's testinony,

"Wth all due respect, | don't know an elective abortion
is." He felt that there needed to be a clearer definition
of "nmedically necessary.” He was unconfortable wth a

doctor deemng an abortion "medically necessary"” |ust
because a woman felt a pregnancy was interfering with her
life. He remarked that if the state pays for the abortion,
Al aska m ght be |ooked at as endorsing the choice to have
an abortion. He stressed that the bill's intent was rel ated
to definitions. He felt that the issue was culture versus
law. He remarked that Alaska was working hard to ensure
that Medicaid was not paying for elective abortions. He
felt that it was fraud for Medicaid to pay for elective
abortions.

1:15: 54 PM

JENNI FER  ALLEN, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PQLICY, PLANNED
PARENTHOOD GREAT NORTHWEST, SEATTLE (via tel econference),

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



spoke in opposition to SB 49, to protect the freedom and
privacy of all Al aska wonen, no matter their incone, to
make their own pregnancy decisions in consultation wth
their doctors. She remarked that Planned Parenthood was a
heal th care provider, whose m ssion was to ensure access to
high quality reproductive health care. She stated that
Pl anned Parenthood operated five health care centers in
Al aska; and served over 7000 Alaskans in 2011, and two
thirds of those people were |low incone individuals. She
stressed that the vast majority of the services focused on
prevention; including cancer screenings, birth control, and
screening for sexually transmitted infections. She shared
that Planned Parenthood was also a provider of safe
abortion care. She explained that Planned Parenthood could
not give a definition of an "elective abortion", because
that Planned Parenthood believed the term "elective" had
been inmbued with negative value, and was used to denean or
shane wonmen who choose to end a pregnancy. She furthered
that Planned Parenthood could not give a definition of
"medi cally necessary", because the only person who could
answer that question would be a physician. She explained
that Planned Parenthood worked extensively w th Departnent
of Health and Social Services on a new regulation that was
established to add a |layer of extra certification to ensure
that Medicaid-paid abortions in Alaska were nedically
necessary. She felt that the legislation would put wonen's
health at risk by deterring or delaying wonen from seeking
abortions in Al aska, for whatever reason. She stressed that
pregnancy decisions should be nade by a woman and her
doct or.

1: 20: 45 PM

LAURA EINSTEIN, CH EF LEGAL OFFICER, PLANNED PARENTHOOD
GREAT NORTHWEST, SEATTLE (via teleconference), testified
against SB 49, and aligned her testinmony with M. Allen.
She felt that the testinmony in favor of the bill was
extrenely inaccurate. She shared that the 2001 Suprene
Court ruling stated that "if the purpose of this definition
was to limt abortions or to favor childbirth, it was not
constitutional."” She felt that the presentation of the bill
did not reflect savings to the State. She stressed that the
bill was not constitutional, because there was no evidence
that denying abortion care would save the State noney;
particularly conpared to those cost involved, if sone of
the women continue their pregnancy. She stressed that the
2001 case of Planned Parenthood vs. State of Al aska, the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



Suprene Court concluded that the State was wunable to
articulate the conpelling need to discrimnate against
wonen seeking abortions. She felt that the sane result
woul d occur, if the legislature adopted the |egislation.

1:25: 55 PM

PAUL  JOHNSEN, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to SB 49. He stated that he
believed the right of all wonmen to choose what to do with
their bodies, and felt that Roe v. Wde affirned that
right. He felt that the legislation was an attenpt to
circunvent Roe v. \Wade. He did not feel that the
| egislature had a right to inpose norality on others, and
remarked that the bill would have a detrinental effect on
poor wonen. He remarked that the |legislature should not
spend tine on this legislation, because there were real
government problenms in the state that warranted attention.

1: 27: 39 PM

KATE FINN, NURSE, HOVER (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition to SB 49. She shared that she had worked for
five years as a sexual assault nurse exam ner. She stated
that the legislature had guidelines as to what activities
constitute rape behavior; there was nothing on who decided
if those activities occurred during a particular sexual
encounter. She wondered how rape was defined as "rape." She
wondered if the rape was deci ded based on the circunstances
reported by the woman; was it a decision that a physician
or an exam ner made, based on the reported incident and
physi cal findings; was the decision up to the police who
may or may not have been asked to respond to the incident;
does the decision require wtnesses to corroborate the
woman's report; does a judge and jury decide. She remarked
that the determnation of rape was inportant to when and
whether or not a woman could use Medicaid to obtain an
abortion.

1: 30: 48 PM

LYNN AMW, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), testified in
opposition to SB 49. She shared that she worked wth
adoptions and foster care famlies. She stressed that there
is always a grief reaction for a woman who chooses to have
an abortion; but there was also a grief reaction for a
woman who chooses to give her child up for adoption. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



expl ai ned that the nother always grieves for the state of
the child that she relinquished. She stressed that the fate
of the adopted child was always a concern and source of
worry for the birth nother. She felt that there should not
be Ilimtation on abortions, especially for poor and
mnority wonen.

1: 33: 22 PM

AMY BCOLLENBACH, SELF, HOMVER (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition to SB 49. She stressed that the cost of abortion
was much less than financing the birth and personal
expenses. She agreed with the previous testifiers, who had
testified in opposition. She felt that poor wonman have the
same rights as nmen and rich wonman. She referred to a
request from Senator MQ@iire from Legislative Research,
which reflected that the status of wonmen in Alaska was
worse than nuch of the rest of the nation. She stressed
that there were many Alaskan wonen who were honeless,
because of donestic violence. She felt that these honel ess
wonen would face additional challenges, if they were not
granted State funds for abortions.

1: 35: 14 PM

DI ANA CONVWAY, SELF, HALIBUT COVE (via teleconference),
testified against SB 49. She referred to her letter of
opposition (copy on file). She shared that she had given
birth twice, and later had an abortion after her birth
control failed. She stated that she had sone experience
wor ki ng very poor people and famlies. She pointed out that
when wonen are discrimnated against, they becone second
class citizens, and therefore nade wonen nore susceptible
to violence. She felt that SB 49 was discrimnatory,
because it only chooses one nedical procedure for which to
define the term "nedically necessary." She remarked that
the bill did not describe any procedures that nen obtain.
She stressed that the decisions were nade between the man
and his doctor; which was were the decision properly
bel onged.

1: 37: 54 PM

JEAN JAMES, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition to SB 49. She shared that she grew up in a tine
when abortion was illegal. She felt that it was the
physician's decision to determne was it considered

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



nedically necessary, and not the decision of t he
| egi sl ature. She renmarked that the bill would be subject to
expensive litigation. She felt that the noney could be used
t owards pregnhancy prevention care. She shared that her late
husband woul d have been opposed to SB 49.

1: 40: 12 PM

MARY KEHRHAHN- STARK, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to SB 49. She felt that poor and
rich people should be given equal protection under the |aw
as ruled by the Al aska Suprenme Court. She renmarked that an
unpl anned pregnancy was not an issue to be discussed by
politicians; she felt that it was an issue to be discussed
bet ween a woman and her doctor.

1:42: 08 PM

SUSAN SCHRADER, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in opposition to SB 49.
She felt that the decisions should be left to the woman,
her famly, her physician. She stressed that neither she
nor her husband had ever discussed their nedical treatnent
options with their legislators. She wunderstood that her
testimony would not sway those that are philosophically
opposed to abortion rights.

1: 44: 45 PM

GEORGE W BROWN, PHYSI ClI AN, DOUGLAS, testified in
opposition to SB 49. He understood that the issue was very
conplicated. He remarked that abortions were the result of
mental health and behavioral health issues. He felt that it
was scientifically inaccurate to differentiate between
mental and physical health. He stressed that there was a
better way to deal with the problem He felt that the issue
was confrontational and controversial. He stressed that the
focus should be on decreasing unwanted pregnancy through
preventi on.

1:47:47 PM

CYNTHI A SI MPSON- SUGAR, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in
opposition to SB 49. She shared that she had lived in
Al aska for 40 years. She stressed that only a trained and
licensed physician had the right to determine what was
medically necessary for their patients. She shared that
Al askans valued freedom ©privacy, and independence. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



felt that SB 49 would interfere with the private and
aut ononous patient and doctor relationship. She stated that
the legislation would erode the ability of the patient,
their nedical doctor, and their famly to privately nake
the best nmedical decisions. She felt that SB 49 was
discrimnatory, because it limted reproductive health
options for those who relied on the governnment for their
heal th care.

1: 50: 40 PM

JOYANNE BLOOM SELF, JUNEAU, spoke against SB 49. She
shared that she taught Governnent in school. She felt that
SB 49 would be a terrible teaching tool. She remarked that
the bill would show a disregard to the constitution. She
felt the commttee needed to focus on the priorities. She
remar ked that an unpl anned pregnancy was not an issue to be
di scussed by politicians; she felt that it was an issue to
be di scussed between a worman and her doctor.

1: 53: 19 PM

RACHEL CEARHART, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in opposition to
SB 49. She felt that if the bill passed, there would stil

be wunplanned pregnancies, which would result in higher
social services costs. She pointed out that behavioral

health  providers nmust attest to medical necessary
treatnents, as defined by the consuner's specific taken
into consideration. She remarked that that a blanket 1ist

of nedically necessary criteria could not adequately neet
the requirenent that were so personal between a woman and
her doctor. She reiterated Dr. Brown's coments. She
pointed out that daughters born to young, |owincone,
unprepared cycles repeat their nother's cycle.

1: 56: 28 PM

JOHN SONI'N, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in opposition to SB 49.
He agreed with many of the previous testifiers. He felt

that the bill's consideration should be based on logic. He
felt that education should be the focus of the conmttee
and added that the new oil tax legislation was also

unnecessary.

2:01: 21 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



ROBI N FORD, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition to SB 49. She remarked that she was planning on
practicing nedicine in the state upon her graduation from
nmedi cal school. She felt that the bill would come between
deci sions between patients and their doctors. She renarked
that there are no good reasons why wonen should be
di scrimnated against as related to their ability to afford
health care. She stressed that the Al aska Suprene Court had
upheld that the Al aska Constitution protected the right to
privacy for individuals, especially between a wonman and her
doct or.

El LUNED HOGENSQON, PHYSI ClI AN, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified against the |legislation. She
believed the bill was poorly crafted and was too broad to
acconplish anyt hing. She discussed nedical condi tions
pointed to under the bill and itens that were nedically
guest i onabl e. She expl ai ned condi tions t hat coul d
potentially be fatal for pregnant wonen. She wondered who
woul d deci de what was serious; and renmarked that the bil
woul d create confusion. She spoke to traumatic experiences
for pregnant wonen.

2:06: 55 PM

KAREN LEWS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CENTER FOR BIO ETH CAL
REFORM PALMER (via tel econference), spoke in support of SB
49. She felt that abortion was violent, and killed babi es.
She |ikened children in the wonb to slavery. She stated
that the children in the wonb were not a part of the
nmot her's body, because they had their own unique genetic
make-up. She remarked that the children were destroyed,
because they had been deened the property of their nother
t he nother then deened them unwanted and "sentenced themto
death."” She felt that abortion had no place in the United
St at es.

2:11: 03 PM

DEE  LONGENBAUGH, SELF, JUNEAU (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to SB 49. She referred to an
article in Harper's Magazine that stated that the bible was
not against abortion. She referred to Exodus in the bible
that stated that killing a baby through abortion resulted
in the paynent of a fine. Abortion was not considered
nmurder in Roman tines.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



2:12:50 PM

CATHY d RARD, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
against SB 49. She reiterated the previous testifiers

coomments related to the Alaska Suprenme Court decision on
privacy. She felt that legislators should not nake
deci sions about health care and health determ nations. She
stressed the inportance of providing easier access to birth
control for men and wonen, in order to prevent pregnancy.
She added that conprehensive sex education was necessary to
preventing unwanted pregnanci es.

2:15:26 PM

SHEI LA HOWE, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
against SB 49. She remarked that there were many different
ways to prevent abortion, specifically pertaining to
preventative care and sex education. She also felt that
[imting early childhood education funding was detrinental
to the well-being of poor famlies. She remarked that
education was the key to preventing unwanted pregnancies.
She stressed that the bill would not solve any problens,
and would only add to the greater burden on the State.

2:17: 53 PM

CLOVER  SI MON, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to SB 49. She urged the committee
to vote against the legislation. She remarked that Al aska
shoul d have healthy famlies, rather than the highest rates
of child abuse and neglect in the nation. She felt that the
focus should be on prevention, and remarked that abortion
was a synptom of individuals of people who did not have
access to proper prevention and education. She urged an
expansion of famly planning services through Medi cai d.

2:21:04 PM

ELANN MOREN, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), testified
in opposition to SB 49. She stressed that poor wonen should
have the same rights and opportunities of everyone. She
felt that the passage of the bill would result in higher
nunbers of illegal abortions. She shared that she was raped
when she was 17, and did not have access to a |egal
abortion. She shared her story in the Anchorage Daily News.
She felt that the bill was unfair, and stressed that the
decision to have an abortion was extrenely conplicated. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



agreed wth the testinony from Planned Parenthood
representatives. She reiterated that the decision on the
| egislation should be based on reason and not noral
j udgnent .

2:24: 43 PM

ROBIN SM TH, SELF, ANCHORAGE (vi a tel econference), spoke in
opposition to SB 49. She remarked that individual tax
payers do not pay for abortions, rather Medicaid funds cane
from oil tax dollars. She stated that there was a recent
negative report from Legislative Research about wonen. She
pointed out that Al aska had one of the highest rates of
donmestic violence; and Alaskan wonen commt suicide at
twice the rate of the national average. She also stated
that there were many famlies in Alaska that were honel ess.
She stated that if these issues were conpounded with the
| oner enpl oyee pay for wonen, one could see why a woman nay
not realize financial, enotional, or physical where-wth-
all to deliver and care for a child in her life. She felt
that a woman should not be forced to carry a child to term
and potential risk her health.

2:29:01 PM

ANN FI ORELLA, SELF, JUNEAU, testified against SB 49. She
stated that there was nothing in the legislation related to
fetal anomalies. She shared that a nenber of her famly had
recently obtained an abortion, because the baby had no
brain. She believed that not including that informtion was
wong. She believed the list of what was considered
"medi cally necessary” was ridicul ous.

2: 30: 50 PM

ALYSON CURREY, JUNEAU, SELF, spoke in strong opposition to
SB 49. She stressed that if the bill was about redefining
the definition, that politicians should not be the ones
defining the terns. She stated that the decision should be
left to a woman, her famly, doctor, and faith. She stated
that politicians had no business nmaking decisions for
wonen's nedical |ife. She reiterated that if legislators
want to reduce the number of abortions in Al aska, the focus
should be related to increased access to famly planning
service and sex education.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinobny. He discussed that
the bill would be heard again on Monday.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

2:33: 09 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 2:33 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/30/13 1: 06 P. M



